

INSTITUTE FOR MEDICAL IMAGE COMPUTING



FRAUNHOFER MEVIS

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Deep learning methods help discover bone metastases, which can be overlooked in clinical routine. CT dataset courtesy of Radboud UMC, Nijmegen, NL.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

FRAUNHOFER MEVIS AT A GLANCE

Brief Profile	7
Operating and Organizational Structures	12
Advisory Board	14
The Institute in Figures	16
The Fraunhofer-Gesellschaft	18

THE YEAR 2016

Chronicle	19
Highlights	21
Awards	22
Scientific Publications 2016	24
Impressum	29

FRAUNHOFER MEVIS AT A GLANCE

BRIEF PROFILE

The mission of the Fraunhofer Institute for Medical Image Computing MEVIS (short: Fraunhofer MEVIS) is to advance health care by researching and bringing to market solutions for computer-aided medicine, bridging between medical imaging, image-guided therapy, and healthcare informatics.

Our focus is to make an impact in clinical routine use. We work closely with clinical and industrial partners to ensure the relevance of our work, to select research topics based on the expected impact on medical care, and to translate our R&D results into viable innovations.

Clinical Commitment

Research and development at Fraunhofer MEVIS pursue a clinical direction instead of technological or methodological orientations. Work focuses on developing innovative solutions for image-based medical processes and their industrial implementation for clinical use. Identifying and analyzing clinical issues demands a deep understanding of medical research and calls for close cooperation with clinical partners. Fraunhofer MEVIS maintains an international network of over 100 clinical partners. This clinical network is an essential source of user feedback for evaluating the clinical relevance and feasibility of developed solutions.

Industrial Collaboration

True innovation, the successful launch of solutions onto the market with tangible impact, is only possible through close collaboration with industrial partners with the necessary resources and market know-how to fuel the development of new technologies. Fraunhofer MEVIS functions as the link between clinicians and industry, aiming to fuel technological advancement for clinical use. Transferring applied research to the industry is a pillar of the institute and a requirement for future research. Partners for cooperation and clients for industrial research and development include large firms and small- or medium-sized ventures in medical technology or related fields such as pharmaceutics.

Certification

Successful introduction of innovative approaches onto the market requires adherence to specific regulations, such as the German Act on Medical Devices (MPG) or the approval guidelines of the United States Food and Drug Administration (FDA). Fraunhofer MEVIS is one of a small group of research facilities that, in Bremen since 2005 and in Lübeck since 2012, has operated a quality management system according to the EN ISO 13485 (Medical Devices) standard with a special focus on implementing a software development process in compliance with IEC 62304. The establishment of these quality management systems with the scope on design, development and production of software for medical products lays out well-defined steps for industrial cooperation and enables Fraunhofer MEVIS to provide market-ready solutions for commercial partners in the strongly regulated medical device market. In addition, Fraunhofer MEVIS also has experience with CE and FDA approval of software solutions for clinical environments.

Software Platform

The MeVisLab development platform by Fraunhofer MEVIS and MeVis Medical Solutions AG is a tool for rapid prototyping, flexible development of clinical software solutions as well as developing products and methods for fields such as image analysis, visualization, and biophysical modeling. The joint use of MeVisLab at Fraunhofer MEVIS and partners in research, medicine, and industry promotes synergy and accelerates development. This supports the tight technological integration of clinics, research, and industry. MeVisLab provides an interface to 3D Slicer, a software platform for the analysis and visualization of medical images and for research in image-guided therapy. Slicer is a free, open source software available on multiple operating systems and extensible via plugins for adding algorithms and applications.

Business Areas

In order to strengthen the focus on commercialization, the Fraunhofer MEVIS business areas have been redefined in 2016. While the previous business area »Clinical Software Systems« summarized the application-specific software solutions for a large part of the project business, the four new business areas are tailored to market segments and related industrial customers. The range of services can therefore be specifically defined and developed for these customer groups.

The business area *»Diagnostic Software« (DSW)* is centered around the clinical challenge to ensure optimal therapeutic decisions incorporating the constantly growing amount of data on the one hand and the efficiency pressure for faster processing on the other. The customers in this segment are imaging device vendors, clinical IT companies, and specialized image analysis providers.

The planning and support of surgical and minimally invasive procedures, a key topic of Fraunhofer MEVIS since its founding, is developed in the business area *»Image-Guided Therapy« (IGT).* A particular challenge here is to provide the operating physician all relevant information in the intervention room. Customers are mainly hardware vendors that span a wide range of products from implants like valves and stents to catheters and needles, treatment devices like robots or linear accelerators (linacs), and navigation devices.

The former business area »Pharmacology and Studies« will continue as business area »*Clinical Trials and Pharma*« *(CTP)*. The services so far, especially in the field of analysis software for image-based studies, are being expanded in this business area to a comprehensive range of services for the industry. Customers are pharmacological companies, contract research organizations (CROs), service and software providers for image analysis as well as researchers in hospitals, laboratories, and companies.

»Quantitative Pathology« (QP) as a field with special potential for growth and considerable technological development. Customers are manufacturers and providers of digital pathology equipment as well as healthcare IT integrators. Our key focus is in modular pattern analysis and virtual multi-staining techniques, building on existing digital pathology platforms. Quantitative Pathology is pursued as a separate business area, since it addresses its own customer group.

Additional business activities open up the potential for exploitation of the existing expertise in the field of imaging physics. We aim at bundling the offers of other areas of competence for the customer group of equipment manufacturers for medical imaging. In magnetic resonance imaging (MRI), we offer our expertise to develop dedicated sequences for research, clinical and commercial customers.

Core Competences

Four scientific and two supporting core competences form the pillars of our work in research and translation.

The process of creating medical images is addressed by our core competence *»Imaging Physics« (IP)*. This spans from improving image acquisition and creating new physiological information to automated motion tracking and quality assessment. The goal is to integrate image acquisition and post-processing to an optimized image analysis pipeline.

The core competence *»Image and Data Analysis« (IDA)* revolves around the extraction of information from medical images and other medical data. The previous technological focus of image processing has been extended to non-imaging data and, therefore, to the challenge of incorporating all relevant information. The main goals are to maintain and expand competence in automatic extraction of quantitative image information and in efficient interactive solutions for decision support systems, for planning and support systems for IGT, and for extracting quantitative information in big data scenarios.

In *»Image Registration« (IR)*, the goal is to harmonize images from different modalities, capture times, or patients, in order to evaluate the combined information. Fraunhofer MEVIS provides applicable image registration with a focus on robust, reasonable, accurate, and efficient solutions.

Our core competence *»Modeling and Simulation« (MS)* enables us to incorporate knowledge of biophysical and bio-

medical processes to enhance the information within medical images. In addition to application driven developments, we also perform basic research to enhance the technological capabilities. A particular focus for the next years will lie on validation of the results, in order to gain acceptance by industrial partners and physicians.

The capability of providing high quality, modular, reusable software components, efficient and well-integrated software applications and flexible deployment is managed and developed in the core competence *»Software Development« (SWD)*.

The anchoring of Fraunhofer MEVIS in digital medical technology and the focus of its research activities on the clinical benefits are cultivated by the core competence *»Clinical Expertise« (CE)* and will be further developed as a long term USP.

Strategic Partnerships

In addition to the network of clinical partners, Fraunhofer MEVIS maintains a strong network of technological partners. Currently, Fraunhofer MEVIS is connected with six universities in Germany, the Netherlands, and the United States through seven professors:

- University of Bremen: Prof. Kikinis, Prof. Günther
- Jacobs University Bremen: Prof. Hahn, Prof. Preusser
- University of Lübeck: Prof. Modersitzki,
- Radboud University Nijmegen: Prof. van Ginneken
- Harvard Medical School: Prof. Kikinis
- TU Berlin, Prof. Hennemuth (starting in 2017)

Since 2012, Fraunhofer MEVIS pursues a strategic partnership with the Diagnostic Image Analysis Group (DIAG) at the Radboud University Medical Center in Nijmegen, the Netherlands, an internationally renowned center of excellence for Computer-Aided Diagnosis (CAD). The partnership is backed up by a recently started project on automation in medical imaging supported by Fraunhofer's international cooperation program ICON.

Through the financial support of the State of Schleswig-Holstein and the European Union, the Fraunhofer MEVIS Project Group for Image Registration was established under the direction of mathematician Prof. Dr. Bernd Fischer at the University of Lübeck in April 2010. The internationally renowned group addresses the core competence medical image registration in close cooperation with the Institute of Mathematics and Image Computing (MIC) at the University of Lübeck. In July 2013, Prof. Dr. Bernd Fischer passed away following a short severe illness. The director of the MIC, Prof. Dr. Jan Modersitzki, was appointed new director of the Fraunhofer MEVIS Project Group for Image Registration in October 2014. Since July 2015, the project group is part of the Fraunhofer MEVIS mother institute in Bremen.

Development of the Institute (1995-2008)

The current Fraunhofer MEVIS institute was founded in August 1995 as MeVis – Center for Medical Diagnostic Systems and Visualization, a non-profit limited liability company (gGmbH). To expand the institute, MeVis received yearly funding from the State of Bremen. Prof. Dr. Heinz-Otto Peitgen was appointed executive director, and an international scientific advisory board oversaw research. In 2006, the institute was renamed MeVis Research GmbH, Center for Medical Image Computing.

Since 1997, MeVis Research has produced several legally and financially independent spin-offs that were consolidated in 2007 into MeVis Medical Solutions AG, a publicly traded company that employs about 150 people. Aside from a few temporary declines in staff due to changes in personnel caused by the founding of a new company, the number of employees steadily increased between the founding in August 1995 and integration into the Fraunhofer-Gesellschaft in January 2009. During this time, the number of employees has increased from 10 to 51 full-time positions.

Affiliation with the Fraunhofer-Gesellschaft

On January 1, 2009, MeVis Research was incorporated into the Fraunhofer-Gesellschaft and renamed Fraunhofer MEVIS, Institute for Medical Image Computing (Institut für Bildgestützte Medizin). Prof. Dr. Heinz-Otto Peitgen was appointed Institute Director. The Advisory Board (Kuratorium) of Fraunhofer MEVIS convened on June 4, 2009, headed by Prof. Dr.-Ing. Erich. R. Reinhardt, at the time, the head of medical technology on the board of Siemens AG. Since early 2009, Fraunhofer MEVIS has been a member of the Fraunhofer Group for Information and Communication Technology (Fraunhofer-Verbund IuK).

In October 2012, Prof. Peitgen left Fraunhofer MEVIS and the former Deputy Institute Director Prof. Hahn took over as Interim Institute Director. Prof. Dr. Ron Kikinis and Prof. Dr. Horst K. Hahn were appointed new directors of Fraunhofer MEVIS in January 2014 and April 2014, respectively. Since then Fraunhofer MEVIS is under dual leadership. On June 5, 2014, Prof. Dr. Gabor Székely from ETH Zurich was elected new chairman of the Fraunhofer MEVIS Advisory Board and Walter Märzendorfer from Siemens Healthcare its vice chairman.

During the transition phase of five years, the parent institute in Bremen and the project group in Lübeck have received funding from the States of Bremen and Schleswig-Holstein and have been co-financed by the European Regional Development Fund (ERDF). The mother institute in Bremen and the project group in Lübeck were positively evaluated by international review boards in May 2013 and 2014. They are under regular basic funding of the Fraunhofer-Gesellschaft since January 2014 and July 2015, respectively.

> The CAFUR software developed by Fraunhofer MEVIS automatically identifies the breathing and heart contraction phases in the data independent of the ECG information. This allows for a fast and easy examination of heart patients.



OPERATING AND ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURES

Fraunhofer MEVIS' interdisciplinary orientation is reflected in the institute's operating principles and organizational structure. Researchers are not bound to strict, hierarchically organized working groups, but act in a flexible network.

Three categories of strategic topics shape this network, with dedicated experts forming the nuclei of activities: organ- or disease-related clinical domains, technological core competences, and customer-oriented business areas.

Project teams are put together with team members from different technological and clinical credentials. This form of dynamic collaboration promotes cooperation and fosters cross-training, beneficial both to the individuals and to the institute as a whole.

Internal communication is governed by transparency and cooperation. Access to information is only restricted insofar as required by confidentiality agreements with customers or by legal constraints - otherwise sharing of information is encouraged and expected at all levels and is actively aided by exchange forums such as the social Wiki-based intranet (Confluence), morning meetings for all staff members and an active information policy by the leadership. Initiative by all staff members also beyond their current work assignment is highly encouraged.

To improve management, organization, and staff development, Fraunhofer MEVIS established a new mentoring system in August 2014. Management responsibility was extended to a group of experienced staff members who act as mentors or co-mentors for mentees. Responsibilities of the mentors include professional development of the mentee, coordination between institute and mentee's goals, as well as identifying and addressing of potential conflicts and problems.

Two male and two female employee representatives are elected from the staff to function as liaisons and mediators when needed.

As a result of the strategy process 2015/16, Fraunhofer MEVIS introduced a new structure of organizational units (OEs) each with a responsible OE manager (OEV) as of April 2017.

The main objectives of the new OE structure are:

- clear allocation of responsibilities,
- more efficient budget planning and
- strategic focus.

The OEVs are by default mentor for the respective OE members. The mentees can freely choose their OE as well as the co-mentor. OEVs as well as other OE members bear specific strategic responsibility to the institute, especially for business areas and core competences. Alloced budgets must be explicitly used for appropriate strategic objectives. Objectives and budgets are coordinated by the OEVs in consultation with the institute directors and the financial management.

Overall responsibility for the institute is organized in a central leadership and administration structure. The heads of the institute

- Prof. Dr.-Ing. Horst K. Hahn (Institute Director)
- Prof. Dr. Ron Kikinis (Institute Director)

• Dipl.-Betrw. Thomas Forstmann (Head of Administration) are assisted in operational and strategic tasks by the OEVs and four leadership committees for human resources (LH), valorization (LV), research (LR), and finance (LF).

The Advisory Board of Fraunhofer MEVIS is composed of sixteen members with backgrounds in research funding, business, science, and medicine and advises the management in issues of scientific focus and industrial application (see next section).

> Organizational chart of Fraunhofer MEVIS with the organizational units (OEs) and responsible OE managers (OEVs), as well as the elected representatives for equal rights (BfC) and the scientific and technical council (gWTR).



ADVISORY BOARD

In Bremen on June 2, 2016, the Fraunhofer MEVIS Advisory Board met for the seventh time. Dr. Hans-Otto Feldhütter, Head of the main department Business Models of the Fraunhofer headquarters in Munich, gave a talk concerning the current state of affairs of the Fraunhofer-Gesellschaft. The institute directors Prof. Dr. Horst Hahn and Prof. Dr. Ron Kikinis reported on developments in the focus and structure of the institute and outlined medium-term plans and prospects. A special focus was placed on the ongoing strategy process at Fraunhofer MEVIS.

The Advisory Board was presented with demonstrations of current practical research by scientific personnel to relay the latest developments of Fraunhofer MEVIS in the fields of image-guided therapies and machine learning.

During the reporting period, the Fraunhofer MEVIS Advisory Board consisted of sixteen individuals.

Chairman

Prof. Dr. Gábor Székely Image Science Division ETH Zürich

Vice Chairman

Walter Märzendorfer Siemens AG, Erlangen

Industry

Prof. Dr. med. Jörg F. Debatin GE Healthcare, Chalfont St Giles, UK

Dr. Bernd Gewiese Bruker BioSpin GmbH, Rheinstetten

Marcus Kirchhoff MeVis Medical Solutions AG, Bremen Prof. Dr. Hans Maier BGM Associates, Berlin

PD Dr. med. Christian Meisel Roche Diagnostics GmbH, Penzberg

Medicine

Prof. Dr. med. Mathias Prokop Radboud University Medical Centre Nijmegen, NL

Prof. Dr. med. Ulrich Sure Department of Neurosurgery Essen University Hospital

Science

Prof. Dr. Jürgen Hennig Division of Diagnostic Radiation, University Medical Center Freiburg

Prof. Dr. med. Dipl.-Phys. Heinz-Peter Schlemmer Department of Radiology German Cancer Research Center, Heidelberg

University of Bremen / Jacobs University

Prof. Dr. Jens Falta Institute of Solid State Physics, University of Bremen

Prof. Dr. Kerstin Schill Faculty of Mathematics / Computer Science University of Bremen

Dr. Alexander Ziegler-Jöns Science & Technology Transfer Jacobs University Bremen



Research Funding

Dr. Steffen Lüsse Ministry of Science, Economy, and Traffic State of Schleswig-Holstein, Kiel

Dr. Ursula Niebling Bremen Senator of Science, Health and Consumer Protection Department of Scientific Planning and Research Promotion

> Image Caption: Attendees of the eighth assembly of the Fraunhofer MEVIS Advisory Board in Bremen on June 2, 2016

THE INSTITUTE IN FIGURES

Budget and Earning Trends

In 2016, the overall earnings of the institute slightly decrea-sed by 166 T \in to 9 324 T \in . The industrial earnings including other earnings increased – for the first time in three years – by +58% compared to the previous fiscal year (PFY). In particular, the new customer business and the completed organizational restructuring processes at some larger customers led to a noticeable improvement. Due to the ending of the initial funding phase of the Federal State Schleswig-Holstein for the group in Lübeck, the basic funding was 4 percentage points lower than the previous year, totaling 1 927 T \in (PFY: 2 245 T \in). Earnings from publicly funded projects fell by a substan-tial 7% compared to the previous year.

The overall budget increased in 2016 by +2%. While the operating budget (OB) remained virtually unchanged at 8 917 T \in , the investment budget (IB) almost doubled to 407 T \in compared to the previous year. One reason for this is investments was the relocation of the institute as well as strategic investments, which did not occur in the assumed amount in the previous year.



Overall Budget in T€:

	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016
OB:	7 401	8 357	9 404	8 951	8 917
IB:	360	776	414	207	407
Total	7 761	9 133	9 818	9 158	9 324

Human Resources

Overall, the average number of persons employed by Fraunhofer MEVIS fell in 2016. The number of scientific staff mem-bers was reduced by seven full-time equivalents (FTE). The number of employees in administration (including IT) was reduced to an average of 14 FTE.





THE FRAUNHOFER-GESELLSCHAFT

Research of practical utility lies at the heart of all activities pursued by the Fraunhofer-Gesellschaft. Founded in 1949, the research organization undertakes applied research that drives economic development and serves the wider benefit of society. Its services are solicited by customers and contractual partners in industry, the service sector and public administration.

At present, the Fraunhofer-Gesellschaft maintains 69 institutes and research units. The majority of the nearly 24,500 staff are qualified scientists and engineers, who work with an annual research budget of more than 2.1 billion euros. Of this sum, 1.9 billion euros is generated through contract research. More than 70 percent of the Fraunhofer-Gesellschaft's contract research revenue is derived from contracts with industry and from publicly financed research projects. Almost 30 percent is contributed by the German federal and Länder governments in the form of base funding, enabling the institutes to work ahead on solutions to problems that will not become acutely relevant to industry and society until five or ten years from now.

International collaborations with excellent research partners and innovative companies around the world ensure direct access to regions of the greatest importance to present and future scientific progress and economic development.

With its clearly defined mission of application-oriented research and its focus on key technologies of relevance to the future, the Fraunhofer-Gesellschaft plays a prominent role in the German and European innovation process. Applied research has a knock-on effect that extends beyond the direct benefits perceived by the customer: Through their research and development work, the Fraunhofer Institutes help to reinforce the competitive strength of the economy in their local region, and throughout Germany and Europe. They do so by promoting innovation, strengthening the technological base, improving the acceptance of new technologies, and helping to train the urgently needed future generation of scientists and engineers.

As an employer, the Fraunhofer-Gesellschaft offers its staff the opportunity to develop the professional and personal skills that will allow them to take up positions of responsibility within their institute, at universities, in industry and in society. Students who choose to work on projects at the Fraunhofer Institutes have excellent prospects of starting and developing a career in industry by virtue of the practical training and experience they have acquired.

The Fraunhofer-Gesellschaft is a recognized non-profit organization that takes its name from Joseph von Fraunhofer (1787–1826), the illustrious Munich researcher, inventor, and entrepreneur.



THE YEAR 2016

CHRONICLE

January 27, 2016

Kick-off meeting of the project »Automation in Medical Imaging (AMI)« co-funded by Fraunhofer within the ICON program.

March 7-10, 2016

»Fraunhofer Wissenschaftscampus« for female MINT students organized and hosted by Fraunhofer institutes IFAM, IWES and MEVIS in Bremen.

March 29 – April 1, 2016

Deep Learning Workshop at Diagnostic Image Analysis Group (DIAG) in Nijmegen.

May 26, 2016

Invited plenary lecture at European Congress of Digital Pathology in Berlin.

May 26-27, 2016

Symposium on cooperation between the DIAG and Fraunhofer MEVIS in Bremen.

June 2, 2016

Eighth meeting of the Fraunhofer MEVIS Advisory Board (Kuratorium) in Bremen.

June 9-10, 2016

Audit of the Fraunhofer MEVIS strategy process in Bremen.

June 14-17, 2016

Workshop »Radiomics for Radiologists« organized by Fraunhofer MEVIS at »Haus der Wissenschaft« in Bremen.

July 21, 2016

Kick-off meeting for the BMBF-funded project MS-Atrophie at Fraunhofer MEVIS in Bremen.

August 19-20, 2016

Fraunhofer MEVIS is moving into new premises in the Technical Academy Bremen (TAB) at the University of Bremen.

September 9-10, 2016

Fraunhofer MEVIS director Prof. Horst Hahn gives two talks in the Deep Space 8k at the Ars Electronica Festival in Linz, Austria.

September 14, 2016

Kick-off for the planning of the new Fraunhofer MEVIS building in Bremen.

October 1, 2016

Fraunhofer MEVIS is presenting a new innovative interactive exhibit and the »Meta-realistic Medical Moving Images« during the Long Night of Museums at the AUDIOVERSUM Science Center in Innsbruck, Austria.

October 10-12, 2016

Fraunhofer Talent School for pupils organized and hosted by Fraunhofer institutes IFAM and MEVIS in Bremen.

November 14-17, 2016

Fraunhofer institutes IPA and MEVIS present the results of their cooperation on robotic assistance for the positioning of interventional needles at the MEDICA trade fair in Düsseldorf.

November 14-17, 2016

Certification audit by DEKRA at Fraunhofer MEVIS in Bremen and Lübeck.

November 21, 2016

Kick-off meeting for the Fraunhofer-funded project »Quant-Med« on quantitative medicine and cognitive medical computing in Bremen.

November 27 - December 2, 2016

Fraunhofer MEVIS presents itself at the »102nd Scientific Assembly and Annual Meeting of the Radiological Society of North America (RSNA)« in Chicago, USA.

December 1, 2016

Kick-off meeting for the BMBF-funded project »Panther« on patient-oriented oncologic therapy support at Ludwig Maximilian University of Munich.

December 13, 2016

Invited talk by Prof. Andy Miah from the University of Salford, Manchester, UK on Engineering Ethics in an Age of Intelligent Machines.

HIGHLIGHTS

Workshop »Radiomics for Radiologists«

Between June 14 and 17, 2016 the first workshop »Radiomics for Radiologists« took place at the »Haus der Wissenschaft« in the city center of Bremen. The workshop was co-organized by Fraunhofer MEVIS director Prof. Ron Kikinis and the radiologists Prof. Gabriele Krombach, Gießen and Prof. Stefan Schönberg, Mannheim. About 30 directors and leading researchers from university clinics and research institutes across Germany attended the workshop. The results of the Workshop formed the basis for the White Paper »Mehr Qualität in der personalisierten Medizin mit Radiomics«. Radiomics aims at the collective characterization and quantification of pools of image features. and clinics.

New Home for Fraunhofer MEVIS

On August 20, 2016 Fraunhofer MEVIS has moved into new premises in the Technical Academy Bremen (TAB) adjacent to the distinctive drop tower at the University of Bremen after having stayed for 20 years in the building in the Universitätsallee 29. In its new building with address »Am Fallturm 1«, Fraunhofer MEVIS is still connected with the airport and the central station via tram no. 6. On September 14, the kick-off for Fraunhofer MEVIS' new own building took place in Bremen. The new institute building on the campus of the University Bremen is planned to be ready in fall 2020.

Fraunhofer MEVIS at Ars Electronica Festival 2016

Institute Director Prof. Horst Hahn gave two talks in the Deep Space 8k at the Ars Electronica Festival in Linz, Austria, on September 9 and 10, 2016. In his talks, Horst Hahn followed the track of machine learning in medicine and looked for answers to questions about future role models, the influence of digitization and how emerging human-computer teams achieve a far superior performance while overcoming technical and spatial limits – with effects even in the most remote countries.

Project »QuantMed« funded by Fraunhofer-Gesellschaft

The proposal for the QuantMed project has been accepted by the Fraunhofer-Gesellschaft. QuantMed gives Fraunhofer MEVIS the chance and opportunity to explore the new field of quantitative medicine by establishing the area of cognitive medical computing within the next upcoming three years. It has a budget of 3 Mio. \in in total given that the milestones after 10 and after 22 months are fulfilled. The QuantMed kick-off meeting took place on November 21, 2016.

Funding from VolkswagenStiftung

In December 2016, Prof. Matthias Günther from the Department of Physics & Electrical Engineering at the University of Bremen and head of MR Imaging at Fraunhofer MEVIS received 100,000 Euro within the funding initiative Experiment! by the VolkswagenStiftung for a period of three years. The funded research project »Direct Magnetic Resonance Imaging Using a Magneto-Inductive Lens and Microcoils« aims to provide a high-resolution image of the body tissue to be examined in a few milliseconds instead of seconds, and thus revolutionize magnetic resonance imaging.

AWARDS

Medical App Award 2016

»Mobile Liver Explorer« was among the nine nominees for the first »Medical App Award 2016« offered by the Life Science Nord e.V.

SPIE Best Student Paper Award 2016

Teodora Chitiboi among finalists for the Robert F. Wagner Best Student Paper Award of the »Image Processing« conference at »SPIE Medical Imaging«, held from February 27 to March 3 in San Diego.



SCIENTIFIC PUBLICATIONS 2016

Journal Articles

Athelogou M, Kim HJ, Dima A, Obuchowski N, Peskin A, Gavrielides MA, Petrick N, Saiprasad G, Colditz Colditz D, Beaumont H, Oubel E, Tan Y, Zhao B, Kuhnigk J-M, Moltz JH, Orieux G, Gillies RJ, Gu Y, Mantri N, Goldmacher G, Zhang L, Vega E, Bloom M, Jarecha R, Soza G, Tietjen C, Takeguchi T, Yamagata H, Peterson S, Masoud O, Buckler AJ (2016) Algorithm Variability in the Estimation of Lung Nodule Volume From Phantom CT Scans: Results of the QIBA 3A Public Challenge. Acad Radiol 23(8):940–952

Chitiboi T, Schnell S, Collins J, Carr J, Chowdhary V, Honarmand AR, Hennemuth A, Linsen L, Hahn HK, Markl M (2016) Analyzing myocardial torsion based on tissue phase mapping cardiovascular magnetic resonance. J Cardiovasc Magn Reson 18(1):15

Cieciera M, Kratochwil C, Moltz J, Kauczor H-U, Holland-Letz T, Choyke P, Mier W, Haberkorn U, Giesel FL (2016) Semi-automatic 3D-volumetry of liver metastases from neuroendocrine tumors to improve combination therapy with 177Lu-DOTATOC and 90Y-DOTATOC. Diagn Interv Radiol 22:201–206

Crozier A, Augustin CM, Neic A, Prassl AJ, Holler M, Fastl TE, Hennemuth A, Bredies K, Kuehne T, Bishop MJ, Niederer SA, Plank G (2016) Image-Based Personalization of Cardiac Anatomy for Coupled Electromechanical Modeling. Ann Biomed Eng 44(1):58–70

Ehteshami Bejnordi B, Litjens G, Timofeeva N, Otte-Holler I, Homeyer A, Karssemeijer N, van der Laak J (2016) Stain specific standardization of whole-slide histopathological images. IEEE Trans Med Imaging 35(2):404–415

Gallardo-Estrella L, Lynch DA, Prokop M, Stinson D, Zach J, Judy PF, van Ginneken B, van Rikxoort EM (2016) Normalizing computed tomography data reconstructed with different filter kernels: effect on emphysema quantification. Eur Radiol 26(2):478–486

Haneder S, Konstandin S (2016) [Functional MRI 2.0: 23Na and CEST imaging] (Review). Radiologe 56(2):159–169

Hanken K, Eling P, Klein J, Klaene E, Hildebrandt H (2016) Different Cortical underpinnings for fatigue and depression in MS? Journal of Multiple Sclerosis and Related Disorders 6:81–86

Hanken K, Manousi A, Klein J, Kastrup A, Eling P, Hildebrandt H (2016) On the relation between self-reported cognitive fatigue and the posterior hypothalamic-brainstem network. Eur J Neurol 23(1):101–109

Hayes LL, Alazraki A, Wasilewski-Masker K, Jones RA, Porter D, Palasis S (2016) Diffusion-weighted Imaging Using Readout-segmented EPI Reveals Bony Metastases from Neuroblastoma. J Pediat Hematol Onc 38(7):e263–e266

Heckel F, Schlamelcher J, Rotermund H, Rockstroh M, Zidowitz S, Neumuth T (2016) A service for monitoring the quality of intraoperative cone beam CT images. Curr Dir Biomed Eng 2(1):373–377

Helck A, Schumann C, Aumann J, Thierfelder K, Strobl FF, Braunagel M, Niethammer M, Clevert DA, Hoffmann RT, Reiser M, Sandner T, Trumm C (2016) Automatic path proposal computation for CT-guided percutaneous liver biopsy. Int J CARS 11(12):2199–2205

Hillengass J, Ritsch J, Merz M, Wagner B, Kunz C, Hielscher T, Laue H, Bauerle T, Zechmann CM, Ho AD, Schlemmer H-P, Goldschmidt H, Moehler TM, Delorme S (2016) Increased microcirculation detected by dynamic contrast-enhanced magnetic resonance imaging is of prognostic significance in asymptomatic myeloma. Br J Haematol 174(1):127–135

Ivanovska T, Laqua R, Wang L, Schenk A, Yoon JH, Hegenscheid K, Volzke H, Liebscher V (2016) An efficient level set method for simultaneous intensity inhomogeneity correction and segmentation of MR images. Comput Med Imaging Graph 48:9–20

Jacobs C, van Rikxoort EM, Murphy K, Prokop M, Schaefer-Prokop CM, van Ginneken B (2016) Computer-aided detection of pulmonary nodules: a comparative study using the public LIDC/IDRI database. Eur J Radiol 26(7):2139–2147

Jang J, Ahn K-J, Kim B-Y, Porter D, Stemmer A, Choi HS, Jung S-L, Kim B-S (2016) The Usefulness of Diffusion-Weighted Readout-Segmented EPI and Fast Spin Echo with BLADE (PROPELLER) k-Space Sampling: A Comparison with Single-Shot EPI for Diffusion-Weighted Imaging in Ischemic Stroke Patients. Int J Imaging Syst Technol 26(3):216–224

Karim R, Bhagirath P, Claus P, James Housden R, Chen Z, Karimaghaloo Z, Sohn H-M, Lara Rodriguez L, Vera S, Alba X, Hennemuth A, Peitgen H-O, Arbel T, Gonzalez Ballester MA, Frangi AF, Gotte M, Razavi R, Schaeffter T, Rhode K (2016) Evaluation of state-of-the-art segmentation algorithms for left ventricle infarct from late Gadolinium enhancement MR images. Med Image Anal 30:95–107

Köhler B, Born S, van Pelt RFP, Hennemuth A, Preim U, Preim B (2016) A Survey of Cardiac 4D PC-MRI Data Processing: 4D PC-MRI Data Processing Survey. Comput Graph Forum (in press). Online first: 31.03.2016 doi:10.1111/cqf.12803

König L, Derksen A, Papenberg N, Haas B (2016) Deformable image registration for adaptive radiotherapy with guaranteed local rigidity constraints. Radiat Oncol 11(1):122

Kida I, Ueguchi T, Matsuoka Z, Zhou K, Stemmer A, Porter D (2016) Comparison of Diffusion-Weighted Imaging in the Human Brain Using Readout-Segmented EPI and PROPELLER Turbo Spin Echo With Single-Shot EPI at 7 T MRI. Invest Radiol 51(7):435–439

Kohlmann P, Boskamp T, Köhn A, Rieder C, Schenk A, Link F, Siems U, Barann M, Kuhnigk J-M, Demedts D, Hahn HK (2016) Remote Visualization Techniques for Medical Imaging Research and Image-Guided Procedures. Visualization in Medicine and Life Sciences III 133–154

Lehmann KS, Poch FGM, Rieder C, Schenk A, Stroux A, Frericks BB, Gemeinhardt O, Holmer C, Kreis ME, Ritz JP, Zurbuchen U (2016) Minimal vascular flows cause strong heat sink effects in hepatic radiofrequency ablation ex vivo. J Hepatobiliary Pancreat Sci 23(8):508–16

Loeve AJ, Al-Issawi J, Fernandez-Gutierrez F, Langø T, Strehlow J, Haase S, Matzko M, Napoli A, Melzer A, Dankelman J (2016) Workflow and Intervention Times of MR-guided Focused Ultrasound – predicting the impact of new techniques Corresponding. J Biomed Inform 60:38–48

Lotz J, Olesch J, Müller B, Polzin T, Galuschka P, Lotz JM, Heldmann S, Laue H, Warth A, Lahrmann B, Grabe N, Sedlaczek O, Breuhahn K, Modersitzki J (2016) Patch-Based Nonlinear Image Registration for

Gigapixel Whole Slide Images. IEEE Trans Biomed Eng 63(9):1812-1819

Madai VI, Wood CN, Galinovic I, Grittner U, Piper SK, Revankar GS, Martin SZ, Zaro-Weber O, Moeller-Hartmann W, von Samson-Himmelstjerna FC, Heiss WD, Ebinger M, Fiebach JB, Sobesky J (2016) Clinical-Radiological Parameters Improve the Prediction of the Thrombolysis Time Window by Both MRI Signal Intensities and DWI-FLAIR Mismatch. Cerebrovasc Dis 42(1-2):57–65

Neugebauer M, Glöckler M, Goubergrits L, Kelm M, Kuehne T, Hennemuth A (2016) Interactive virtual stent planning for the treatment of coarctation of the aorta. Int J CARS 11(1):133–144

Oechtering TH, Hons CF, Sieren M, Hunold P, Hennemuth A, Huellebrand M, Drexl J, Scharfschwerdt M, Richardt D, Sievers H-H, Barkhausen J, Frydrychowicz A (2016) Time-resolved 3-dimensional magnetic resonance phase contrast imaging (4D Flow MRI) analysis of hemodynamics in valve-sparing aortic root repair with an anatomically shaped sinus prosthesis. J Thorac Cardiovasc Surg 152(2):418–427

Okazaki S, Griebe M, Gregori J, Guenther M, Sauter-Servaes J, Wolf ME, Gass A, Hennerici MG, Szabo K, Kern R (2016) Prediction of Early Reperfusion From Repeated Arterial Spin Labeling Perfusion Magnetic Resonance Imaging During Intravenous Thrombolysis. Stroke 47(1):247–250

Poch FGM, Rieder C, Ballcausen H, Knappe V, Ritz JP, Gemeinhart O, Kreis ME, Lehmann KS (2016) The vascular cooling effect in hepatic multipolar radiofrequency ablation leads to incomplete ablation ex vivo. Int J Hyperther 32(7):749–756

Pompe E, van Rikxoort EM, Mets OM, Charbonnier JP, Kuhnigk JM, de Koning HJ, Oudkerk M, Vliegenthart R, Zanen P, Lammers JJ, van Ginneken B, de Jong PA, Mohamed Hoesein FA (2016) Follow-up of CT-derived airway wall thickness: Correcting for changes in inspiration level improves reliability. Eur J Radiol 85(11):2008–2013

Rühaak J, König L, Tramnitzke F, Köstler H, Modersitzki J (2016) A Matrix-Free Approach to Efficient Affine-Linear Image Registration on CPU and GPU. J Real-Time Image Proc. Online publication: 05.04.2016 doi:10.1007/s11554-016-0564-4

Sander C, Eling P, Hanken K, Klein J, Kastrup A, Hildebrandt H (2016) The Impact of MS-Related Cognitive Fatigue on Future Brain Parenchymal Loss and Relapse: A 17-Month Follow-up Study. Front Neurol 7

Sandmann C, Hodneland E, Modersitzki J (2016) A practical guideline for T1 reconstruction from various flip angles in MRI. J Algorithms Comput Technol 10(4):213–223

Schaafs LA, Porter D, Audebert HJ, Fiebach JB, Villringer K (2016) Optimising MR perfusion imaging: comparison of different software-based approaches in acute ischaemic stroke. Eur Radiol 26(11):4204–4212

Schlett CL, Hendel T, Hirsch JG, Weckbach S, Caspers S, Schulz-Menger J, Ittermann T, von Knobelsdorff-Brenkenhoff F, Ladd SC, Moebus S, Stroszczynski C, Fischer B, Leitzmann M, Kuhl C, Pessler F, Hartung D, Kemmling Y, Hetterich H, Amunts K, Gunther M, Wacker F, Rummeny E, Kauczor H-U, Forsting M, Voelzke H, Hosten N, Reiser MF, Bamberg (2016) Quantitative, Organ-Specific Interscanner and Intrascanner Variability for 3 T Whole-Body Magnetic Resonance Imaging in a Multicenter, Multivendor Study. Invest Radiol 51(4):255–265

Schlett CL, Hendel T, Weckbach S, Reiser M, Kauczor HU, Nikolaou K, Guenther M, Forsting M, Hosten N, Volzke H, Bamberg F (2016) Population-Based Imaging and Radiomics: Rationale and Perspective of the German National Cohort MRI Study. Rofo 188(7):652–661

Schulz-Wendtland R, Harz M, Meier-Meitinger M, Brehm B, Wacker T, Hahn HK, Wagner F, Wittenberg T, Beckmann MW, Uder M, Fasching PA, Emons J (2016) Semi-Automated Delineation of Breast Cancer Tumors and Subsequent Materialization Using Three-Dimensional Printing (Rapid Prototyping). J Surg Oncol (in press). Online first: 14.12.2016 doi:10.1002/jso.24510

Schwen LO, Homeyer A, Schwier M, Dahmen U, Dirsch O, Schenk A, Kuepfer L, Preusser T, Schenk A (2016) Zonated quantification of steatosis in an entire mouse liver. Comput Biol Med 73:108–118

Schwenke M, Georgii J, Preusser T (2016) Fast Numerical Simulation of Focused Ultrasound Treatments during Respiratory Motion with Discontinuous Motion Boundaries. IEEE T Bio-Med Eng 64(5)

Sleigh A, Savage DB, Williams GB, Porter D, Carpenter TA, Brindle K, Kemp G (2016) 31 P magnetization transfer measurements of Pi->ATP flux in exercising human muscle. J Appl Physiol 120(6):649–656

Sommer CM, Pallwein-Prettner L, Vollherbst DF, Seidel R, Rieder C, Radeleff BA, Kauczor HU, Wacker F, Richter GM, Bücher A, Rodt T, Massmann A, Pereira PL (2016) Transarterial embolization (TAE) as addon to percutaneous radiofrequency ablation (RFA) for the treatment of renal tumors: Review of the literature, overview of state-of-the-art embolization materials and further perspective of advanced image-guided tumor ablation. Eur J Radiol 86:143–162

Stützer K, Haase R, Lohaus F, Barczyk S, Exner F, Löck S, Rühaak J, Lassen-Schmidt B, Corr D, Richter C (2016) Evaluation of a deformable registration algorithm for subsequent lung computed tomography imaging during radiochemotherapy. Med. Phys. 43(9):5028–5039

Stuke H, Hanken K, Hirsch J, Klein J, Wittig F, Kastrup A, Hildebrandt H (2016) Cross-Sectional and Longitudinal Relationships between Depressive Symptoms and Brain Atrophy in MS Patients. Front Hum Neurosci 10:8

Tautz L, Feng L, Otazo R, Hennemuth A, Axel L (2016) Cardiac function analysis with cardiorespiratory-synchronized CMR. J Cardiovasc Magn R 18(Suppl 1):W24

von Samson-Himmelstjerna F, Madai VI, Sobesky J, Guenther M (2016) Walsh-ordered Hadamard time-encoded pseudocontinuous ASL (WHpCASL). MRM 76(6):1814–1824

Wang L, Chitiboi T, Meine H, Günther M, Hahn HK (2016) Principles and methods for automatic and semi-automatic tissue segmentation in MRI data. Magn Reson Mater Phy (MAGMA) 29(2):95–110

Warmann SW, Schenk A, Schaefer JF, Ebinger M, Blumenstock G, Tsiflikas I, Fuchs J (2016) Computer-assisted surgery planning in children with complex liver tumors identifies variability of the classical Couinaud classification. J Pediatr Surg 51(11):1801–1806 Wehrum T, Hagenlocher P, Lodemann T, Vach W, Dragonu I, Hennemuth A, von Zur Muhlen C, Stuplich J, Ngo BTT, Harloff A (2016) Age dependence of pulmonary artery blood flow measured by 4D flow cardiovascular magnetic resonance: results of a population-based study. J Cardiovasc Magn R 18(1):31

Wei W, Zhang T, Fang H, Dirsch O, Schenk A, Homeyer A, Gremse F, Zafarnia S, Settmacher U, Dahmen U (2016) Intrahepatic Size Regulation in a Surgical Model: Liver Resection-Induced Liver Regeneration Counteracts the Local Atrophy following Simultaneous Portal Vein Ligation. Eur Surg Res 57(1-2):125–137

Wei W, Zhang T, Zafarnia S, Schenk A, Xie C, Kan C, Dirsch O, Settmacher U, Dahmen U (2016) Establishment of a rat model: Associating liver partition with portal vein ligation for staged hepatectomy. Surgery 159(5):1299–1307

Xie C, Schwen LO, Wei W, Schenk A, Zafarnia S, Gremse F, Dahmen U (2016) Quantification of Hepatic Vascular and Parenchymal Regeneration in Mice. PLoS ONE 11(8):1–19

Xie C, Wei W, Schenk A, Schwen LO, Zafarnia S, Schwier M, Gremse F, Jank I, Dirsch O, Dahmen U (2016) Visualization of Vascular and Parenchymal Regeneration After 70% Partial Hepatectomy in Normal Mice. JoVE 115(e53935):1–6

Yamada H, Yamamoto A, Okada T, Kanagaki M, Fushimi Y, Porter DA, Tanji M, Hojo M, Miyamoto S, Togashi K (2016) Diffusion Tensor Imaging Of The Optic Chiasm In Patients With Intra- Or Parasellar Tumor Using Readout-Segmented Echo-Planar. Magn Reson Imaging 34(5):654–661

Yoon JH, Choi J-I, Jeong YY, Schenk A, Chen L, Laue H, Kim SY, Lee JM (2016) Pre-treatment Estimation of Future Remnant Liver Function using Gadoxetic acid MRI in Patients with HCC. J Hepatol 65(6):1155–116

Articles in Conference Proceedings

Breutigam NJ, von Samson-Himmelstjerna F, Günther M (2016) Automatic adaption of ASL labeling parameters: Walsh-sorted time-encoded pCASL with a dynamic feedback algorithm. Proceedings of the 24th Annual Meeting ISMRM. 1000

Chitiboi T, Hennemuth A, Schnell S, Varun Chowdhary V, Honarmand A, Markl M, Linsen L Hahn H (2016) Contour tracking and probabilistic segmentation of tissue phase mapping MRI. Proc. SPIE Medical Imaging: Image Processing. 978404:pp 1–8

Chitiboi T, Neugebauer M, Schnell S, Markl M, Linsen L, Hennemuth A (2016) Superquadric Glyphs for Visualizing Myocardial Motion in 3D. Proceedings of the 24th Annual Meeting ISMRM. 2601

Cordes C, Honroth T, Hoinkiss DC, Archipovas S, Porter DA, Günther M (2016) Parameter Dependency in Modular MR Sequences using Directed Graphs. Proceedings of the 24th Annual Meeting ISMRM. 3198

Derksen A, König L, Meine H, Heldmann S (2016) A Joint Registration and Segmentation Approach for Large Bladder Deformations in Adaptive Radiotherapy. Medical Physics: Proceedings of the AAPM 58th annual meeting, Washington, DC. American Association of Physicists in Medicine, 3429

Eickel K, Luedemann L, Porter DA, Guenther M (2016) Simultaneous Multi-Slice Acquisition with Multi-Contrast Segmented EPI for Dynamic Contrast-Enhanced Imaging. Proceedings of the 24th Annual Meeting ISMRM. 3244

Georgii J, Pätz T, Harz M, Stöcker C, Rothgang M, Colletta J, Schilling K, Schlooz-Vries M, Mann RM, Hahn HK (2016) Simulation and Visualization to support Breast Surgery Planning. Proc. of 13th International Workshop on Breast Imaging. pp 257–264

Heckel F, Zidowitz S, Neumuth T, Tittmann M, Pirlich M, Hofer M (2016) Influence of Image Quality on Semi-Automatic 3D Reconstructions of the Lateral Skull Base for Cochlear Implantation. Proceedings of Jahrestagung der Deutschen Gesellschaft für Computer- und Roboterassistierte Chirurgie (CURAC). pp 129–134

Heckel F, Arlt F, Geisler B, Zidowitz S, Neumuth T (2016) Evaluation of image quality of MRI data for brain tumor surgery. Proc. SPIE Medical Imaging: Image Perception, Observer Performance, and Technology Assessment. 97871L:pp 1–7

Hennemuth A, Schumann C, Neugebauer M, Mirzaee H, Nordmeyer S, Kelm M, Goubergrits L, Kuehne T (2016) 4D-PC MRI Pressure Mapping for Therapy Planning of Coarctation of the Aorta. Proceedings of the 24th Annual Meeting ISMRM. 2618

Hirsch JG, Köhn A, Hoinkiss DC, Peter J, Thomsen A, Günther M, the German National Cohort MRI Study Investigators (2016) Fully Automated Data Management and Quality Assurance in Very Large Prospective Cohort MR Imaging Studies – the MR Imaging Study within the German National Cohort. Proceedings of the 24th Annual Meeting ISMRM. 0247

Hirsch JG, Köhn A, Hoinkiss DC, Singe J, Albers M, Aumann N, Guenther M, the NAKO MRI Study Investigators (2016) Quality Assessment in Very Large Prospective Multicenter Cohort MR Imaging Studies – the MR Im-

aging Study within the German National Cohort (NAKO). Proceedings of ESMRMB 33rd Annual Scientific Meeting. 186

Hoinkiss DC, Porter DA (2016) Prospective Correction of Long-Term Subject Motion in Diffusion Tensor Imaging Using Intermediate, Pseudo-Trace-Weighted Images. Proceedings of ESMRMB 33rd Annual Scientific Meeting. 170

Hoinkiss DC, Günther M, Porter DA (2016) Prospective Motion Correction in Diffusion Tensor Imaging using Intermediate Pseudo-Trace-Weighted Images. Proceedings of the 24th Annual Meeting ISMRM. 1844

Honroth T, Cordes C, Archipovas S, Hoinkiss DC, Günther M, Porter DA (2016) Platform-independent, rapid prototyping of MR sequences without code compilation. Proceedings of the 24th Annual Meeting ISMRM. 3207

Honroth T, Vreeman S, Vicari M, Laue H, Mann R, Guenther M (2016) 3D Arterial Spin Labeling in breast cancer: A case study. Proceedings of the 24th Annual Meeting ISMRM. 1489

Huellebrand M, Neugebauer M, Steinmetz M, Frahm J, Hennemuth A (2016) Quantitative Assessment of Functional Variability with Real-time MRI. Proceedings of the 24th Annual Meeting ISMRM. 2631

Kompan IN, Guenther M (2016) Phase correction in the presence of gradient delays for 3D radial data. Proceedings of the 24th Annual Meeting ISMRM. 1767

Konstandin S, Guenther M (2016) A beating heart simulation for sequence optimization of sodium MRI. Proceedings of the 24th Annual Meeting ISMRM. 3943

Kost H, Homeyer A, Bult P, Balkenhol MCA, van der Laak JAWM, Hahn HK (2016) A generic nuclei detection method for histopathological breast images. In: Gurcan MN, Madabhushi A (eds) Proc. SPIE Medical Imaging: Digital Pathology. 97911E:pp 1–7

Kramme J, Diepers M, Günther M, Steinert S, Gregori J (2016) Quality assessment of a semi-automated spinal disc volume segmentation method. Proceedings of the 24th Annual Meeting ISMRM. 1453

Liebig PA, Heidemann RM, Porter DA (2016) Zigzag-Aligned-Projections in Echo-Planar Imaging. Proceedings of the 24th Annual Meeting ISMRM. 1832

Manka L, Schiffmann H, Thiele H, Randazzo M, Kwiatkowski M, Hiber D, Gassler N, Sperling M, Hammerer P, Lotz J, Laue H (2016) ProHistoM-RI®: Proof of Principle – MRT/Histopathologische Fusion – Ein neuer Schritt in der Evaluation der MRT Diagnostik beim Prostatakarzinom. Kongress der Deutschen Gesellschaft für Urologie

Meine H, Izadpanah K, Lange T (2016) Image Processing Pipeline for MRI-based In-vivo Cartilage Assessment under Load. In: Heinz Lemke (ed) Computer Assisted Radiology and Surgery (CARS) 2016: Proceedings of the 30th Congress and Exhibition. Springer, S51+ Polzin T, Niethammer M, Heinrich MP, Handels H, Modersitzki J (2016) Memory Efficient LDDMM for Lung CT. In: Ourselin S, Joskowicz L, Sabuncu MR, Unal G, Wells W (eds) Medical Image Computing and Computer-Assisted Intervention – MICCAI 2016. Lecture Notes in Computer Science 9902(Part III), pp 28–36

Porter DA, Vicari M (2016) Readout Segmentation for Increased Spectral Bandwidth in High Spatial and Spectral Resolution (HiSS) MRI. Proceedings of the 24th Annual Meeting ISMRM. 1820

Schwier M, Hahn HK, Dahmen U, Dirsch O (2016) Segmentation of vessel structures in serial whole slide sections using region-based context features. Proc. SPIE Medical Imaging: Digital Pathology. 97910E:pp 1–14

Tautz L, Feng L, Otazo R, Hennemuth A, Axel L (2016) Analysis of cardiac interventricular septum motion in different respiratory states. Proc. SPIE Medical Imaging: Biomedical Applications in Molecular, Structural, and Functional Imaging. 97880X:pp 1–6

von Samson-Himmelstjerna FC, Chappell MA, Günther M (2016) Automated outlier detection for time-encoded ASL. Proc. 33rd Annual Scientific Meeting ESMRMB. 790

Wang L, Schnurr A-K, Zidowitz S, Georgii J, Zhao Y, Razavi M, Schwier M, Hahn HK, Hansen C (2016) Segmentation of hepatic artery in multiphase liver CT using directional dilation and connectivity analysis. Proc. SPIE Medical Imaging: Computer-Aided Diagnosis. 97851P:pp 1–8

Wang L, Schnurr A-K, Zhao Y, Zidowitz S, Georgii J, Hahn HK, Hansen C (2016) Segmentation of hepatic artery in multi-phase liver CT using directional dilation and connectivity analysis. Proc. of SPIE Medical Imaging 2016: Computer-Aided Diagnosis. 97851P

Dissertations

Chitiboi, T (2016) Myocardium Segmentation and Motion Analysis from Time-varying Cardiac Magnetic Resonance Imaging, Jacobs University Bremen

Schwaab, J (2016) Computer-aided image quality assessment in automated 3D breast ultrasound images, Universität Bremen

Schwier, M (2016) Object-based Image Analysis for Detection and Segmentation Tasks in Biomedical Imaging, Jacobs University Bremen

von Samson-Himmelstjerna, F (2016) Robust and time-efficient determination of perfusion parameters using time-encoded Arterial Spin Labeling MRI, Universität Bremen

Master Theses

Breutigam, N-J (2016) Automatic adaption of Arterial Spin Labeling parameters: Walsh-sorted time-encoded pCASL with dynamic feedback, Carl von Ossietzky Universität Oldenburg

Cazacu, DI (2016) Modeling liver volume regeneration with linear elasticity. Jacobs University Bremen

Dymek, M (2016) Methoden zur Berechnung der glomerulären Filtrationsrate, Universität zu Lübeck

Khaledi, K (2016) Characterization of Arterial Spin Labeling Data at Different Inflow and Spin-Echo Times, Carl von Ossietzky Universität Oldenburg

Meike, M (2016) GPU-basierte nichtlineare Bildregistrierung, Universität zu Lübeck

Meyer, A (2016) Smart Contouring Tool: Interactive Learning of Object Boundaries in Medical Images, Otto-von-Guericke-Universität Magdeburg

Mikulewitsch, M (2016) Spectrally resolved arterial spin labeling images, Universität Bremen

Öztürk, EE-B (2016) Analyse bildbasierter Qualitätsparameter in einer MRT-Kohortenstudie, Universität Bremen

Poppen, M (2016) Analysis of spectrally resolved Arterial Spin Labeling at different inflow times, Universität Bremen

Ramos Delgado, P (2016) Investigations on the Influence of Parameters affecting Compressed Sensing Demonstrated with MR Breast Spectroscopic Imaging, Friedrich-Schiller-Universität Jena

Saleem, MA (2016) Sparse Parallel Imaging for Accelerated 3D Golden-Angle Radial MRI, Otto-von-Guericke-Universität Magdeburg

Vanselow, C (2016) Analysis of multi compartment exponential decay with arterial spin labeling, Universität Bremen

Bachelor Theses

Espelage, TJ (2016) Erstellung eines Perfusionsatlasses des menschlichen Gehirns, Universität Bremen

Kasper, JD (2016) Bildregistrierung für die Untersuchung der Lunge der Maus mit Optischer Kohärenzmikroskopie, Universität zu Lübeck

Weber, LT (2016) Rekonstruktion verschiedener Atemphasen mittels zeitaufgelöster Multislice 2D Magnetresonanztomographie, Universität Bremen

IMPRESSUM

Text	Thomas Forstmann	Publisher	Fraunhofer MEVIS
	Dr. Guido Prause		Am Fallturm 1
Graphic Design	Olaf Klinghammer		Germany +49 421 218 59112 info@mevis.fraunhofer.de
Editing & Layout	Olaf Klinghammer Dr. Guido Prause		www.mevis.fraunhofer.de
Translation	David Black		
Image Credits	© Fraunhofer MEVIS		